
 

Agenda No. 2017–14 July 24, 2017 Page 1 of 3 

FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA NO. 2017–14 

REGULAR MEETING JULY 24, 2017 
FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 

 
It is the mission of the City of Fairbanks to provide essential services to the residents of the City that 
increase the desirability of the City as a place to live, work, and visit.  Essential services include not just 
the visible activities of police, fire, and public works employees, but also the creation and maintenance of 
community infrastructure, promotion of safe housing and construction standards, and the sound 
management of community assets.   

 
REGULAR MEETING 

 
7:00 P.M. 

 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
 
2. INVOCATION 
 
 
3. FLAG SALUTATION 
 
 
4. CITIZENS COMMENTS, oral communications to Council on any item not up for 

Public Hearing.  Testimony is limited to five minutes.  Any person wishing to 
speak needs to complete the register located in the hallway.  Normal standards 
of decorum and courtesy should be observed by all speakers.  Remarks should 
be directed to the City Council as a body rather than to any particular Council 
Member or member of the staff.  In consideration of others, kindly silence all cell 
phones and electronic devices.  

 
 
5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA AND CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Approval of Consent Agenda passes all routine items indicated by an asterisk(*).  
Consent Agenda items are not considered separately unless a Council Member 
so requests.  In the event of such a request, the item is returned to the General 
Agenda.   

 
 
6. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES 
 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 1 of 93



 

Agenda No. 2017–14 July 24, 2017 Page 2 of 3 

7. SPECIAL ORDERS 
 

 a) The Fairbanks City Council will hear interested citizens concerned with the 
following Marijuana License Applications for Renewal.  Public Testimony 
will be taken and limited to five minutes.   

 
Lic. # DBA License Type Licensee Premises Address 

10131 
Pakalolo Supply 
Company, Inc. 

Retail Marijuana 
Store 

Pakalolo Supply 
Company, Inc. 

1851 Fox Avenue 

10230 
Pakalolo Supply 
Company, Inc. 

Standard Marijuana 
Cultivation Facility 

Pakalolo Supply 
Company, Inc. 

1851 Fox Avenue 

 
 
8. MAYOR'S COMMENTS AND REPORT 
 
 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 

 a) The Fairbanks City Council will consider the following application for a 
new Retail Marijuana Store License:   

 
Type: Retail Marijuana Store, License #10589 
DBA: Nature’s Releaf, LLC 
Licensee/Applicant: Nature’s Releaf, LLC 
Physical Location: 503 7th Avenue, Fairbanks, Alaska 

 
 NOTE: This item was POSTPONED from the Regular Meeting of July 10, 

2017; a public hearing was held at that time.   
 
 b) Ordinance No. 6054 – An Ordinance to Present to the Qualified Voters of 

the City of Fairbanks the Question of Maintaining Essential Services by 
Increasing Revenue to Offset Lost Funding from the State of Alaska.  
Introduced by Mayor Matherly and Council Members Huntington, Rogers 
and Therrien.  SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING. 

 
 c) Ordinance No. 6055 – An Ordinance Amending Fairbanks General Code 

Chapter 86, Vehicles for Hire.  Introduced by Mayor Matherly and Council 
Member Pruhs.  SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING.   

 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

*a) Resolution No 4801 – A Resolution Awarding a Contract to DOWL for the 
Minnie Street Corridor Study in the Amount of $476,530.  Introduced by 
Mayor Matherly.  

 

City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 2 of 93



 

Agenda No. 2017–14 July 24, 2017 Page 3 of 3 

*b) Ordinance No. 6056 – An Ordinance Amending FGC Sec. 2-655 Multiyear 
Contracts and FGC Sec. 2-149 Fiscal Note on Ordinances and 
Resolutions to Add Additional Requirements.  Introduced by Council 
Member Cleworth.   

 
 
11. DISCUSSION ITEMS (INFORMATION AND REPORT)  
 

 a) Committee Reports 
 
 
12. COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL 
 

 a) Memo to Approve the Appointment to City Council Seat D 
 
*b) Fairbanks Diversity Council Meeting Minutes of June 13, 2017 

 
 
13. COUNCIL MEMBERS’ COMMENTS 
 
 
14. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 
 
 
15. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
 
16. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
  a) IBEW Labor Negotiations 
 
 
17. ADJOURNMENT 

City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 3 of 93



City of Fairbanks Office of the City Clerk 

800 Cushman Street Fairbanks, AK 99701 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Mayor Jim Matherly and City Council Members 

FROM: D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk @ 
SUBJECT: Marijuana License Renewals 

DATE: July 20, 2017 

(907)459-6715 
Fax (907)459-6710 

Notice has been received from the State Alcohol & Marijuana Control Office (AMCO) for the 
following marijuana license renewals: 

Lie.# DBA License Type Licensee Premises Address 

10131 Pakalolo Supply Company, Inc. 
Retail Marijuana 

Pakalolo Supply Company, Inc. 1851 Fox Avenue 
Store 

10230 Pakalolo Supply Company, Inc. 
Standard Marijuana Pakalolo Supply Company, Inc. 1851 Fox Avenue 
Cultivation Facility 

Pursuant to 3 AAC 306.060, the Council may determine whether to protest marijuana license 
renewals after holding a public hearing. The Marijuana Control Board (MCB) will uphold a 
local government protest and deny an application for a marijuana establishment license unless 
the board finds that the protest is arbitrary, capricious, and unreasonable. The 60-day deadline 
for response to AMCO on the above-listed renewals is August 21, 2017. 

At the MCB meeting on May 15, 2017, the board delegated Director Erika McConnell the 
authority to approve renewal applications with no protests, objections, or notices of violation. 
However, if a timely protest or objection is filed for an application, or if any notices of violation 
have been issued for a license, the board will consider the application. In those situations, a 
temporary license will be issued pending board consideration. 

Per the Council's request, the Police Department has included a call report for the location 
(attached); however, Chief Jewkes is not recommending a protest for either of the renewals. 

There are no departmental protests to the above-listed mariiuana license renewals. Please 
contact me if you need any further information. 

City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 4 of 93



CITY OF FAIRBANKS PUBLIC SAFETY 

Event List with Report Numbers 

Pakalolo Supply Company 1851 Fox Avenue 06/21/2016 - 06/21/2017 

Prime 
Report # Call Time Nature Location Unit Disp. Close Time 

05/19/201707:33 ALARM BURGLARY  1851 FOX AVE 06 FAB 05/19/201708:00:3! 

01/22/201707:53 ALARM BURGLARY  1851 FOX AVE 025 FAB 01/22/201708:09:31 

Total Number of Events Listed: 2 

Report Generated: 06/22/2017 13:59:25 I User 10: 1225 
City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 5 of 93



MEMORANDUM 

City of Fairbanks Clerk's Office D. Danyielle Snider, City Clerk 

TO: Mayor Jim Matherly 
City Council Members 

FROM: D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk @ 
SUBJECT: Application for New Retail Marijuana Store License 

DATE: July 3, 2017 

Attached you will find a notification from the Alcohol and Marijuana Control Office (AMCO) of 
an application for a new Retail Marijuana Store License and additional information for the 
following applicant: 

License#: 
License Type: 
D.B.A.: 
Licensee/ Applicant: 
Physical Location: 

10589 
Retail Marijuana Store 
Nature's Releaf, LLC 
Nature's Releaf, LLC 
503 7th A venue, Fairbanks, Alaska 

Pursuant to 3 AAC 306.060, the Council may file a protest on a new marijuana establishment 
license within 60 days of receipt of application notice from AMCO; the 60-day deadline for the 
City's response is August 4, 2017. 

A notice of the date, time and place of the public hearing has been mailed to all property owners 
within 500 feet of the marijuana establishment and will be advertised in the Fairbanks Daily 
News Miner on July 7, 2017. 

The Building and Fire Departments recommend protest of this license until a Certificate of 
Occupancy is issued. There are no other departmental protests for this license. 

City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 6 of 93



1

Dani Snider

From: Christine Nelson <CNelson@fnsb.us>
Sent: Tuesday, July 18, 2017 4:15 PM
To: Dani Snider
Cc: Manish Singh; Stacy Wasinger; Kellen Spillman
Subject: FW: Question pertaining to buffer distance:  Nature's Releaf and FNSB School District

Importance: High

Dani, do you have minutes or recording of the school district comments on the license 
request for my review of the issues?  I will send a planner to the July 24th City Council 
meeting to answer any follow-up questions but below is FNSB’s interpretation of Title 
18 in this matter. 

 

FNSBC 18.96.240(A)(3) states “No marijuana establishment, except a marijuana 
testing facility, shall be located within the following buffer distances: 

a. Five hundred feet of primary and secondary school buildings (K-12) including 
vocational programs”  
 
FNSB Title 18.04 defines “School buildings” as “buildings, except church buildings as 
defined, used primarily for teaching and instruction on a daily basis as its primary use, 
including elementary and secondary schools and colleges. This definition does not 
include trade/technical/vocational school.” 
 
Administrative buildings such as the FNSB School District building located at 520 5th 
Ave. are not considered to be “school buildings” because based on our knowledge, 
teaching and instruction on a daily basis is not the primary use of the 
building.  Therefore the FNSB 500 foot buffer from a marijuana does not apply to this 
building.  This building was not included in the buffer maps provided to the city for that 
reason. 

FNSB measures buffers by the most direct route (as the crow flies) pursuant to FNSBC 
18.96.240(A)(3)(d) which states “ Buffer distances shall be measured from the nearest 
public entrance of a commercial marijuana establishment to: 

i. Outer boundaries of school buildings, including outdoor school facilities where 
students are regularly found;”  
 
The state measures their buffers by the closest pedestrian route and only the state can 
clarify how they make that determination.  FNSB does not interpret whether the 

City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 7 of 93



2

building located at 520 5th Ave. or any other educational administrative building is 
subject to the state’s marijuana buffer for schools.  
 
 
 
Please let me know if you need any more information or have any follow-up questions. 
 

D. Christine Nelson, AICP, CFM 
Director of Department of Community Planning 
Fairbanks North Star Borough 
907 Terminal Street 
P.O. Box 71267 
Fairbanks, Alaska  99707‐1267 
cnelson@fnsb.us  (e‐mail) 
907‐459‐1260 (main office) 
907‐459‐1251  (direct) 
907‐459‐1255  (fax) 
www.fnsb.us  (website) 

 
 
 

From: Stacy Wasinger  
Sent: Tuesday, July 18, 2017 9:28 AM 
To: Christine Nelson 
Cc: Manish Singh 
Subject: FW: Question pertaining to buffer distance: Nature's Releaf and FNSB School District 
 
 
 

From: Dani Snider [mailto:DSnider@fairbanks.us]  
Sent: Tuesday, July 11, 2017 9:46 AM 
To: Christine Nelson 
Cc: Stacy Wasinger; Mike Meeks; Paul J. Ewers; Eric Jewkes 
Subject: Question pertaining to buffer distance: Nature's Releaf and FNSB School District 
 
Good morning, Christine, 
 
At last night’s Council Meeting, the Council postponed the vote on the Nature’s Releaf marijuana retail license to the 
Regular Meeting of July 24.  There was a question as to whether the School District building qualifies as a school, and 
there was some testimony to support the opinion that it would, including some comments from an Assistant 
Superintendent.   
 
It was understood that the buffer distance is 500 feet, and we have both the state’s definition and the borough’s 
definition of how that distance is measured:   
 

City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 8 of 93



3

 Borough – nearest public entrance of marijuana establishment to outer boundaries of school buildings, including 
outdoor school facilities (as the crow flies) 

 State – shortest pedestrian route from public entrance of marijuana establishment to outer boundaries of the 
school ground 

 
The School District building was not addressed in the buffer zone documents provided by the Planning Department.  Can 
you look into this issue and get back with me prior to the July 24 City Council Meeting?   
 
Thank you, 
 

 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 9 of 93



City of Fairbanks Office of the City Clerk 

800 Cushman Street Fairbanks,AK. 99701 

ALCOHOL AND MARIJUANA CONTROL OFFICE 

MARIJUANA LICENSE RESPONSE FORM 

TO: l:J FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

~ BUILDING DEPARTMENT ,veo 
D FIRE DEPARTMENT RECE 
0 POLICE DEPARTMENT 

. 1m1 
FROM: CITY CLERK'S OFFICE !UN ? r 

(907)459-6715 
Fax (907)459-6710 

DATE: 06/07/2017 

lls._OFF\CE 
RE: MARIJUANA LICENSE ACTION - NEW'1JEff: kt-~ICENSE APPLICATION 

DATE NOTICE RECEIVED AT CLERKS OFFICE: 06/07/2017 (60 DAY DUE DATE08/04/20ID 

DATE RESPONSE DUE: !07 /05/201 ~ for City Council Meeting of 07/10/2017 

License#: 
License Type: 
D.B.A.: 
Licensee/ Applicant: 
Physical Location: 

Corp/LLC Agent: 

Nature's Releaf, LLC 

10589 
Retail Marijuana Store 
Nature's Releaf, LLC 
Nature's Releaf, LLC 
503 7th Avenue, Fairbanks, Alaska 

Mailing Address Phone 

503 7th Avenue 
907-460-2128 

Fairbanks, AK. 99701 

Member/Officer/ Affiliate: DOB Mailing Address 

Barbara Paschall 10/05/1964 540 Haines Avenue 
Fairbanks,AK. 99701 

Kelly Paschall 09/24/1961 540 Haines Avenue 
Fairbanks,AK. 99701 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 

D NO PROTEST: 
COMMENTS 

/,eo;r~.r:r- u-v;:r/~ 

Date and State of Ltd Good 
Partner/Corp standine:? 

05/27/2016 - Alaska Yes 

Phone Title/Shares(%) 

907-460-2128 Member/100% 

907-590-6761 Affiliate 

~ PROTEST 
~ REASONS: 

?//('_,7/,.C/ ~~ 
/_rJ4..,~ ~ C ~~/,,;}¥"'-.JC:, L( ,I""" ...r" 

DEPARTMENT SIGNEE~ ~ ~~J' 4/- ,CLo.o,,~/V 
ignature) ~ (Printed Name) 

NOTE: THIS COMPLETED FORM MUST BE RETURNED TO THE CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
BY THE DATE INDICATED ABOVE. YOU MAY E-MAIL OR FAX (459-6710) THE FORM. 

If vn, I JI A VI<' A NV n, Tl<''i:TION'i: r' A I I (ll ID flli'li'lr'li' AT AC0_,1;'7'7A TU A 1\11£ vn, l 
City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 10 of 93



City of Fairbanks 
800 Cushman Street Fairbanks, AK 99701 

Office of the City Clerk 

(907)459-6715 
Fax (907)459-6710 

ALCOHOL AND MARIJUANA CONTROL OFFICE 

MARIJUANA LICENSE RESPONSE FORM 

TO: 0 FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
0 BUILDING DEPARTMENT 
~ FIRE DEPARTMENT 
0 POLICE DEPARTMENT 

FROM: CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 

DATE: 06/07/2017 

RE: MARIJUANA LICENSE ACTION - NEW RETAIL LICENSE APPLICATION 

DATE NOTICE RECEIVED AT CLERKS OFFICE: 06/07/2017 (6QDAYDUEDATE08/04/20I7) 

DATE RESPONSE DUE: P,I051J01j1 for City Council Meeting of 07/10/2017 

License#: 
License Type: 
D.B.A.: 
Licensee/ Applicant: 
Physical Location: 

Corp/LLC Agent: 

Nature's Rel~ LLC 

10589 
RMall-Mad,llma Ston 
Nature's Releaf, LLC 
Nature's Releaf, LLC 
503 7th Avenue, Fairbanks, Alaska 

Mailing Address Phone 

503 7th Avenue 
907-460-2128 Fairbanks. AK 9970 I 

Member/Officer/Affiliate: DOB Malling Address 

Barbara Paschall 10/05/1964 540 Haines Avenue 
Fairbanks, AK 99701 

Kelly Paschall 09/24/1961 540 Haines A venue 
Fairbanks, AK 99701 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: 

D NO PROTEST: 
COMMENTS 

IZI PROTEST 

Date and State of Ltd Good 
Partner/Corp standine? 

05/27/2016-Alaska Yes 

Phone Title/Shares (%) 

907-460-2128 Member/100% 

907-590-6761 Affiliate 

REASONS:Fire Department recommends protest until the issuance of a Certificate of 
Occupancy by the Building Department. 

DEPARTMENT SIGNEE: ~"'-~-
ffe.gnature) 

I 3°;Jyz S+,1-e.v- ~ 
(Printed Name>7 

NOTE: THIS COMPLETED FORM MUST BE RETURNED TO THE CITY CLERK'S OFFICE 
BY THE DATE INDICATED ABOVE. YOU MAY E-MAIL OR FAX (459-6710) THE FORM. 

If YOU HA VE ANY QUESTIONS CALL OUR OFFICE AT 459-6774. THANK YOU. 
City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 11 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 12 of 93



Natures Releaf LLC
500' Buffer
Building Outlines (2012)

1 = 2000


Image courtesy of: Pictometry

Fairbanks North Star Borough
Generic Report

The Fairbanks North Star Borough does not warrant the accuracy of maps or data provided, nor their suitability for any particular application. There may be errors in the data.

Sensitive Use and Buffer Map
Natures Releaf, LLC

Marijuana License - New - #10589
Retail

0 250 500125 Feet

#*

NOTE:
All measurements are approximated using 

FNSB GIS data and are subject to limited accuracy

Property Information for PAN#: 0038202
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION: FAIRBANKS TOWNSI, BLOCK: 92, LOT:
  19A
OWNER: Paschall Barbara E
SITUS ADDRESS: 503 Seventh Ave
ZONING: GC (100%)
COMMUNITY PLANNING PERMITS:
Zoning: 17493

PAN# 0038202
Printed on: 06/09/2017

~ 356 ft
First

Presbyterian
Church

#* ~ 231 ft

Substance
Abuse
Center

#*

City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 13 of 93



CBD

GC

MF

CBD

MFO

GC

MF

OR

MF

GC

LC

GC

CBD

TFCBD

TF

GC

OR
GC

CBD

GC

LC

GU-1

MF

GCGC

CBD

MFO
CBD

MF
FIFTH AVE

LACEY ST

NOBLE ST

TENTH AVE

EIGHTH AVE

FOURTH AVE

SEVENTH AVE

CUSHMAN ST

SIXTH AVE

ELEVENTH AVE
TWELFTH AVE

THIRD AVE

NINTH AVE

HA
LL

 S
T

Natures Releaf LLC

1 = 3000


Image courtesy of: Pictometry

Fairbanks North Star Borough
Generic Report

The Fairbanks North Star Borough does not warrant the accuracy of maps or data provided, nor their suitability for any particular application. There may be errors in the data.

Proximity and Zoning Map
Natures Releaf, LLC

Marijuana License - New - #10589
Retail

0 250 500125 FeetNOTE:
All measurements are approximated using 

FNSB GIS data and are subject to limited accuracy

Property Information for PAN#: 0038202
PROPERTY DESCRIPTION: FAIRBANKS TOWNSI, BLOCK: 92, LOT:
  19A
OWNER: Paschall Barbara E
SITUS ADDRESS: 503 Seventh Ave
ZONING: GC (100%)
COMMUNITY PLANNING PERMITS:
Zoning: 17493

PAN# 0038202
Printed on: 06/09/2017

City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 14 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 15 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 16 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 17 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 18 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 19 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 20 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 21 of 93



Department of Commerce, Community, & Economic Development

Alcohol & Marijuana Control Office
License #10589

Initiating License Application
6/8/2016 3:52:55 PM

Owner #1

Licensee Type:  Entity

Alaska Entity Number:  10038826

Alaska Entity Name:  Natures Releaf, LLC

Phone Number:  907-460-2128

Email Address:  paschallb@hotmail.com

Mailing Address:  503 7th. Avenue
Fairbanks, AK 99701
UNITED STATES

Affiliate #1

Licensee Type:  Individual

Name:  Kelly Paschall

Date of Birth:  09/24/1961

Phone Number:  907-590-6761

Email Address:  kellypaschall@live.com

Mailing Address:  540 Haines Avenue
Fairbanks, AK 99701
UNITED STATES

Affiliate #2

Licensee Type:  Individual

Name:  Barbara Paschall

Date of Birth:  10/05/1964

Phone Number:  907-460-2128

Email Address:  paschallb@hotmail.com

Mailing Address:  540 Haines Avenue
Fairbanks, AK 99701
UNITED STATES

License Number:  10589

License Status:  New

License Type:  Retail Marijuana Store

Doing Business As:  NATURES RELEAF LLC

Business License Number:  1038024

Designated Licensee:  Barbara Paschall

Email Address:  paschallb@hotmail.com

Local Government:  Fairbanks North Star Borough

Community Council:  

Latitude, Longitude:  64.840707, -147.716720

Physical Address:  503 7th. Avenue
Fairbanks, AK 99701
UNITED STATES

City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 22 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 23 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 24 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 25 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 26 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 27 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 28 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 29 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 30 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 31 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 32 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 33 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 34 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 35 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 36 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 37 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 38 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 39 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 40 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 41 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 42 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 43 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 44 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 45 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 46 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 47 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 48 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 49 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 50 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 51 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 52 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 53 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 54 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 55 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 56 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 57 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 58 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 59 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 60 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 61 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 62 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 63 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 64 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 65 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 66 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 67 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 68 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 69 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 70 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 71 of 93



City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 72 of 93



Introduced by:  Mayor Matherly and 
Council Members Huntington, Rogers, Therrien 

Finance Committee Review:  June 27 and 30, 2017 
Introduced:  July 10, 2017 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 6054 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO PRESENT TO THE QUALIFIED VOTERS OF THE 
CITY OF FAIRBANKS THE QUESTION OF MAINTAINING ESSENTIAL 
SERVICES BY INCREASING REVENUE TO OFFSET LOST FUNDING 

FROM THE STATE OF ALASKA 
 

 WHEREAS, in the early 1980s, the State of Alaska provided substantial funding to 
municipalities in the form of revenue sharing and municipal assistance; and 
 
 WHEREAS, since that time, the City’s share of State revenue sharing has significantly 
decreased; and  
 
 WHEREAS, in 2016, the State’s Community Revenue Sharing program was renamed 
the Community Assistance Program; and 
 
 WHEREAS, before 2017, the seven-year average of revenue sharing funds received by 
the City was $1,713,652 per year; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in 2017, it is estimated that the City will receive $505,000 in revenue 
sharing funds; and  
 
 WHEREAS, given the State’s current budget crisis, there appears to be no chance that 
revenue sharing funds will be restored to their previous levels, and funding may be cut even 
further; and 
 
 WHEREAS, absent additional revenue, this dramatic decrease in revenue sharing funds 
will result in a decrease in the current level of essential City services (police, fire, and public 
works); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City’s Finance Committee has examined other options for financing 
essential City services; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed tax increase will be limited to $1,713,652, minus any amount 
of revenue sharing funds the City actually receives from the State; and 
 
 WHEREAS, under the City’s Charter, voter approval is required in order to increase 
taxes to offset the decreased revenue sharing funds. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows:   
 
SECTION 1. That the following proposition be presented to the qualified voters of the City of 
Fairbanks at the next general election:   

City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 73 of 93



Ordinance No. 6054 
Page 2 

 
Proposition B 
 
INFORMATION:  In the 1980s, the State provided substantial funding to the City in the 
form of revenue sharing.  These funds have dramatically decreased.  During the seven 
years prior to 2017, the City received an average of $1,713,652 per year. The 2017 
estimated amount is $505,000, a 71% decrease.  Given the State’s current budget crisis, 
these funds may disappear. 
 
To maintain the current level of essential City services (police, fire, and public works) 
and to offset the loss of revenue sharing, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 6054, 
which recommends increasing taxes by a yearly amount of $1,713,652, minus any 
revenue sharing funds received.  The proposed change would result in a tax increase of 
$63 for every $100,000 of assessed value, based on current property values.   
 
Should Ordinance No. 6054 be ratified?   

 
YES ______ 
 
NO  ______ 
 
A “YES” vote ratifies Ordinance No. 6054 and allows the City to impose 
increased taxes to maintain city services in an amount of $1,713,652, minus any 
revenue sharing funds the City receives from the State of Alaska.   
 
A “NO” vote rejects Ordinance No. 6054.   

 
SECTION 2.  This ordinance was passed by the City Council on the 24th day of July 2017, but 
no change becomes effective unless and until the question is approved by the voters of the City 
of Fairbanks at a general election.   
 
 
 
              
       Jim Matherly, City Mayor 
 
AYES:   
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
ADOPTED:  
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk  Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 

City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 74 of 93



Introduced by:  Mayor Matherly and 
Council Members Huntington, Rogers, Therrien 

Finance Committee Review:  June 27 and 30, 2017 
Introduced:  July 10, 2017 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 6054, AS AMENDED 

(PROPOSED SUBSTITUTE) 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO PRESENT TO THE QUALIFIED VOTERS OF THE 
CITY OF FAIRBANKS THE QUESTION OF MAINTAINING ESSENTIAL 
SERVICES BY INCREASING REVENUE TO OFFSET LOST FUNDING 

FROM THE STATE OF ALASKA 
 

 WHEREAS, in the early 1980s, the State of Alaska provided substantial funding to 
municipalities in the form of revenue sharing and municipal assistance; and 
 
 WHEREAS, since that time, the City’s share of State revenue sharing has fluctuated (it 
was eliminated altogether from 2004 to 2007) and in recent years has significantly 
decreased; and  
 
 WHEREAS, in 2016, the State’s Community Revenue Sharing program was renamed 
the Community Assistance Program; and 
 
 WHEREAS, before 2017, the seven-year average of revenue sharing funds received by 
the City was $1,713,652 per year; and  
 
 WHEREAS, in 2017, it is estimated that the City will receive $505,000 in revenue 
sharing funds; and  
 
 WHEREAS, given the State’s current budget crisis, there appears to be no chance that 
revenue sharing funds will be restored to their previous levels, and funding may be cut even 
further; and 
 
 WHEREAS, absent additional revenue, this dramatic decrease in revenue sharing funds 
will result in a decrease in the current level of essential City services (police, fire, and public 
works); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City’s Finance Committee has examined other options for financing 
essential City services; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed tax increase will be limited to $1,713,652, minus any amount 
of revenue sharing funds the City actually receives from the State; and 
 
 WHEREAS, under the City’s Charter, voter approval is required in order to increase 
taxes to offset the decreased revenue sharing funds. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows:   
 

City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 75 of 93



Ordinance No. 6054, as Amended 
(Proposed Substitute) 

Page 2 

SECTION 1. That the following proposition be presented to the qualified voters of the City of 
Fairbanks at the next general election:   
 
Proposition B 
 
INFORMATION:  In the 1980s, the State provided substantial funding to the City in the 
form of revenue sharing.  These funds have dramatically decreased in recent years.  
During the seven years prior to 2017, the City received an average of $1,713,652 per 
year. The 2017 estimated amount is $505,000, a 71% decrease.  Given the State’s current 
budget crisis, these funds may disappear. 
 
To maintain the current level of essential City services (police, fire, and public works) 
and to offset the loss of revenue sharing, the City Council adopted Ordinance No. 6054, 
which recommends increasing taxes by a yearly amount of $1,713,652, minus any 
revenue sharing funds received.  The proposed change would result in a tax increase of 
$63 for every $100,000 of assessed value, based on current property values.   
 
Should Ordinance No. 6054 be ratified?   

 
YES ______ 
 
NO  ______ 
 
A “YES” vote ratifies Ordinance No. 6054 and allows the City to impose 
increased taxes to maintain city services in an amount of $1,713,652, minus any 
revenue sharing funds the City receives from the State of Alaska.   
 
A “NO” vote rejects Ordinance No. 6054.   

 
SECTION 2.  This ordinance was passed by the City Council on the 24th day of July 2017, but 
no change becomes effective unless and until the question is approved by the voters of the City 
of Fairbanks at a general election.   
 
 
              
       Jim Matherly, City Mayor 
 
AYES:   
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
ADOPTED:  
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk  Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 

City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 76 of 93



Introduced by:  Mayor Matherly 
Council Member Pruhs 

Introduced Date:  July 10, 2017 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 6055 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING FAIRBANKS GENERAL CODE 
CHAPTER 86 VEHICLES FOR HIRE  

 
 WHEREAS, the City Clerk’s Office continually strives to provide consistent and up-to-
date services to Fairbanks residents through streamlined licensing regulations and procedures; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, members of the tour and shuttle industry have expressed concern that the 
City’s definition of “Vehicle for Hire” might be construed so as to regulate certain tour industry 
vehicles not operating as traditional taxi services or operating primarily outside of the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City’s Vehicles for Hire ordinances were designed to regulate taxi-type 
operations within the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, FGC 86-31 currently includes transportation network companies such as 
Uber and Lyft in its definition of a Vehicle for Hire; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the State of Alaska has prohibited municipal government regulation of 
transportation network companies with the passage of House Bill 132; and  
 
 WHEREAS, ensuring that a chauffeur applicant is able to legally work in the United 
States promotes public safety and complies with federal law; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the transportation of marijuana by vehicles for hire should be regulated 
similarly to the transportation of alcohol. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows:   
 
 
SECTION 1. That Fairbanks General Code Chapter 86 Vehicles for Hire, Article II is hereby 
amended as follows [new text in underlined bold font; deleted text in strikethrough font]:   

 

DIVISION 1. – GENERALLY 

Sec. 86-31.  Definitions.  

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, have the meanings 
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:  

Vehicle for hire means any motor vehicle used to transport passengers to any specified 
destination, upon request and for a fee, to or from a location within the City limits over the 
streets of the city, and includes, but is not limited to:  taxis, cabs, shuttles, and limousines, tours 

City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 77 of 93



Ordinance No. 6055 
Page 2 

and shuttles, and vehicles operated in conjunction with transportation network companies such as 
Uber and Lyft. Specifically excluded from regulation under this Chapter are:  school buses, 
church buses, vehicles used for the primary purpose of sightseeing and tours outside of the 
City, vehicles operated by a business where transportation is incidental to the primary line 
of business, vehicles of a business that operate on a charter or reservation-only basis, 
vehicles owned or operated by the state or a political subdivision of the state, and commercial 
vehicles as defined regulated by state or federal law [AS 28.90.990(a)(2)].   

* * * * * * * * * * 

DIVISION 3. – DRIVERS 
 
Sec. 86-77. – Application for a chauffeur’s license.   
 
(a) All applications for issuance or renewal of a chauffeur's license must be made upon forms 

provided by the city clerk and submitted to the city clerk for review. All applicants must 
meet the following requirements:  

 
(1) Must be 21 years of age or older and furnish proof if requested.  

(2) Must be able to read, write and speak the English language.  

(3) Must have a current Alaska State Driver's License.  

(4) Must not have any delinquent city criminal or traffic fines or fees.  

(5) Must not have had their driver's license suspended or revoked within two years of the 
date of application.  

(6) Must not have had a conviction within 24 months of:  
a. Reckless or negligent driving;  
b. Driving while license is canceled, suspended, revoked, or in violation of a limitation.  

(7) Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, the applicant must not have had a 
felony conviction within eight years or a misdemeanor conviction within four years of:  
a. Prostitution or promotion of prostitution;  
b. Any offense involving a controlled substance under AS Title 11, Chapter 71 or the 

laws of another jurisdiction having substantially similar elements;  
c. Any felony or misdemeanor assault;  
d. Burglary, felony theft, fraud or embezzlement;  
e. Any sexual offense;  
f. Any homicide or assault involving operation of a motor vehicle;  
g. Two separate felony convictions of any type;  
h. Driving a vehicle while intoxicated within five years or within eight years for a felony 

conviction;  
i. Refusal to submit to a chemical test as defined in AS 28.35.032 within five years or 

within eight years for a felony conviction.  

(8) The applicant must not be addicted to the use of intoxicants or narcotics.  

City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 78 of 93



Ordinance No. 6055 
Page 3 

(9) The applicant must not be a sex offender or kidnapper subject to the registration 
requirements of AS Title 12, Chapter 63.  

(10) The applicant must be a citizen of the United States or prove they can be lawfully 
employed in the United States.   

 
(b) The city clerk's office will procure an online criminal history report for each applicant, the 

cost of which will be included in the chauffeur license application fee in the city schedule of 
fees and charges for services.  

* * * * * * * * * * 

Sec. 86-88. – Alcoholic beverages, marijuana, and controlled substances. 
 

No driver of a vehicle for hire may consumedrink alcoholic beverages or any form of 
marijuana or be under the influence of a depressant, hallucinogenic, stimulant or narcotic drug, 
or any controlled substance listed as being controlled under AS 11.71, as defined by AS 
28.33.190, while on duty or within eight hours prior to operating a vehicle for hire.  

* * * * * * * * * * 

Sec. 86-94. – Transporting alcohol or marijuana products without passengers. 
 

It is unlawful for any driver of a vehicle for hire to purchase, transport or deliver alcohol or 
marijuana products at the request of any individual. Any transportation of alcohol or 
marijuana products in a vehicle for hire must be by a passenger riding in the vehicle.  
 
 
SECTION 2. That the effective date of this Ordinance shall be the ___ day of __________2017. 
 
 
 
            _ 
       Jim Matherly, City Mayor 
 
 
AYES:   
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
ADOPTED:  
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk  Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 

City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 79 of 93



  Introduced by:  Mayor Matherly 
Finance Committee Review:  July 18, 2017 

 Introduced:  July 24, 2017 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 4801 
 

A RESOLUTION AWARDING A CONTRACT TO DOWL FOR THE MINNIE 
STREET CORRIDOR STUDY IN THE AMOUNT OF $476,530 

  
WHEREAS, in accordance with FGC Section 54-207 (Architectural, Engineering, & 

Land Surveying Contracts) DOWL was selected by the City of Fairbanks, Fairbanks 
Metropolitan Area Transportation System (FMATS), and Alaska Department of 
Transportation & Public Facilities (ADOT&PF) as the most qualified and suitable firm of 
demonstrated competence to perform planning, public involvement, and design work for 
the Minnie Street Corridor Study (hereinafter the “Project”); and  
  

WHEREAS, the Project will define a “vision” for the Minnie Street corridor through 
public and agency involvement activities, defining the project’s specific purpose and need, 
identifying environmental impacts and mitigation strategies, conducting traffic analyses, 
evaluating project alternatives to arrive at a preferred alternative, and documenting all 
relevant coordination and decisions therein in accordance with Federal Highway 
Association (FHWA) provisions set forth in 23 U.S.C. 168(b)(1)(A) and associated 
regulations under 23 CFR 450.212(d) and 450.318(e); and 

 
WHEREAS, the fee proposal submitted by DOWL to complete the Project was in 

the amount of four hundred seventy-six thousand five hundred thirty dollars ($476,530), 
and City Council approval is required; and 

 
WHEREAS, funding for this project was provided by the FMATS Transportation 

Improvement Program, and the City has already paid the required match. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Fairbanks City Council that the 

Mayor is authorized to execute any and all documents required for expending funds on 
behalf of the City for the Project. 

 
PASSED and APPROVED this 24th Day of July 2017. 

 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Jim Matherly, City Mayor 
 
AYES:    
NAYS:    
ABSENT:  
APPROVED:  
 
ATTEST: APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________ _______________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 

City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 80 of 93



 

Ordinance or Resolution No: 4801

Abbreviated Title: AWARDING MINNIE STREET CORRIDOR STUDY CONTRACT TO DOWL

Department(s): ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT

Does the adoption of this ordinance or resolution authorize:

1) additional costs beyond the current adopted budget? Yes  No X

2) additional support or maintenance costs? Yes  No X

  see below

3) additional positions beyond the current adopted budget? Yes  No X

 

   (F - Full Time, P - Part Time, T - Temporary)

Equipment Contracts Personnel Total

 $476,530  $476,530

   $0

   $0

   $0

   $0

 $0

$0 $476,530 $0 $476,530

Equipment Contracts Personnel Total

 $433,499  $433,499

 $21,516 $21,516

 $21,515 $21,515

$0 $476,530 $0 $476,530

Initial cp Date 7/14/2017

City Match - ALREADY PAID RESOLUTION 4784

State DOT Match

TOTAL

The City previously provided the required match for this phase of the project (Resolution 4784).  There is no 
additional City funding required at this time.  The State has paid $27,090 to date of a 35,218.70 required match.  The 
balance is to be paid once they have an approved capital budget.  Until the total match has been paid by the state, the 
contract will proceed in stages as match funding is available.  This is the preliminary planning, public involvement and 
design stage of Minnie Street Corridor Project. 

Reviewed by Finance Department:

FMATS Transportation Improvement Program.  

II.  FINANCIAL DETAIL:
PROJECTS:

Minnie Street Study

 

 

 

 

 

TOTAL

FUNDING SOURCE:

If yes, type of positions?

CITY OF FAIRBANKS
FISCAL NOTE

I.  REQUEST:

     If yes, what is the estimate?

     If yes, how many positions?

City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 81 of 93



Introduced by:  Council Members Cleworth and Pruhs 
 Finance Committee Review: July 18, 2017 

Introduced:  July 24, 2017 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 6056 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING FGC SEC. 2-655 MULTIYEAR 
CONTRACTS AND FGC SEC. 2-149 FISCAL NOTE ON ORDINANCES 

AND RESOLUTIONS TO ADD ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF FAIRBANKS, ALASKA, as follows:   
 
SECTION 1. That Fairbanks General Code Sec. 2-655 is hereby amended as follows [new text 
in underlined bold font; deleted text in strikethrough font]:   
 

Sec. 2-655.  Multiyear contracts 
 
  (a) As part of an approved multiyear construction plan, contracts may be entered 
into for procurement of long lead time items.  The amounts of such contracts shall 
not exceed the expenditure amounts in the approved plan.   
 
  (b) All multiyear contracts, including labor contracts, must have identifiable 
funding sources.  The sponsor of the ordinance to approve a multiyear contract 
must identify the funding source for the duration of the contract and any general 
fund balance or saving utilized to fund the contract.  If the funding source for a 
labor contract includes any general fund balance or savings, the sponsor 
must also: 
 

(1) Identify the amount; 
 
(2) Identify the impact on the unassigned fund balance; and 
 
(3) Identify the impact on the mayor’s obligation to present a 

balanced budget under FGC Sec. 2-651(a). 
 
  (c) The cost of a multiyear contract may not violate the minimum fund 
balance requirement of FGC Sec. 2-651(b). 
 
 
 

SECTION 2. That Fairbanks General Code Sec. 2-149(c) is hereby amended as follows [new 
text in underlined bold font; deleted text in strikethrough font]:   
 

City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 82 of 93



Ordinance No. 6056 
Page 2 

 
Sec. 2-149.  Fiscal note on ordinances and resolutions. 
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 

  (c) The fiscal note should cover the financial effects for the full term of the 
contract or grant and must include the information required by FGC Sec. 2-
655(b).   
 

*  *  *  *  * 
 
SECTION 3. That the effective date of this Ordinance shall be the ___ day of August 2017. 
 
 
 
            _ 
       Jim Matherly, Mayor 
 
 
AYES:   
NAYS:  
ABSENT:  
ADOPTED:  
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
D. Danyielle Snider, CMC, City Clerk  Paul J. Ewers, City Attorney 
 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 83 of 93



To: 

From: 

Subject: 

Date: 

MEMORANDUM 

City Council Members 

Jim Matherly, City Mayor 

Request for Concurrence to Appoin 

July 20, 20 17 

City of Fairbanks 

As you are aware, Council Member Jerry Norum resigned his position on the City Council, effective 
July 10, 2017. Mr. Norum has been a valuable member of the Fairbanks community for many years 
and served as a City Council member from 1985 - 1991 and from 2016-2017. 

City Charter Section 2.6 provides that vacancies on the City Council be filled by an appointment of 
the Mayor, subject to confirmation by the City Council. I nominate Mr. Jonathan Bagwill to fill the 
vacancy in City Council Seat D. Mr. Bagwill is a well-respected and active member of our 
community, and I believe he will serve the City well. A copy of his resume and letter of interest is 
attached. 

I hereby request your concurrence with the appointment of Mr. Jonathan Bagwill to the Fairbanks 
City Council. If the Council concurs with this request, Mr. Bagwill will be sworn in and seated at the 
Regular City Council meeting of August 7, 2017. 

Thank you. 

dds/ 

Visit us on the web at www.fairbanksalska.us City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 84 of 93



JONATHAN BAGWILL FOR CITY COUNCIL, FAIRBANKS ALASKA 

Jonathan Bagwill 
907.347.2538 
jonathan.bagwill@gmail. 

com 

1571 Dogwood St 

Fairbanks, Alaska 
99709 

Summary 
A life-long resident of Fairbanks and a community-involved leader. Having been a 
permanent resident and physically present since leaving college in 1994, his focus 

has been to help and serve this community for the past 23 years. The opportunity 
and desire to hold public office was recently recommended to him and after much 
careful thought and counsel, he made application with the city in 2016 and ran for 

seat D. The interest in this public service office and the responsibility toward this city 
and community is paramount in his decision to make application for seat D again. 

Experience 

Senior Pastor, New Life Pentecostal Church / Apostolics of Fairbanks, 
Fairbanks Alaska - 2008 - Present 
As a part of this job, the applicant is responsibility for all the day to day running of 

the church. All the administrative and social aspects run across his desk. The overall 
direction of the church rests upon the shoulders of a senior pastor. 

Assistant Pastor, New Life Pentecostal Church, Fairbanks Alaska -

1999-2008 
As assistant pastor, the applicant was responsible for the running of day to day 
operations half of the time due to the Senior Pastor's work schedule and the fact 

that he worked in the villages of Kotzebue and Nome Alaska and was gone one 
week at a time. So half of the scheduled meetings were run by the applicant and 
was directly accountable to the senior pastor. 

Youth Pastor, Christ Tabernacle, North Pole Alaska - 1994-1997 
Responsible for the growth, maturity and maintaining of all the members of the 
church from ages of 12-19. Directly accountable to the senior pastor during this 

time. 

Chaplain assistant, Electric-Environmental and Aircraft Electrician in the 
Alaska Army National Guard and Alaska Air National Guard - 1996-2004 
All training and jobs were instrumental in furthering the career goals in both the 
private sector of Electrical and public service that the applicant now enjoys. 

Journeyman Electrician, Various Employees - 2004-2013 

The applicant went through his apprenticeship and tested out as a journeyman 
electrician as an employee of a few companies in the fairbanks area, which include; 

Wire-Communications, International Electric, Industrial Electric and Outlet Electric 

City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 85 of 93



before going to work for the state of Alaska, where he left to become a full-time 

pastor. 

Education 

Graduated High School at Stockton Christian School in Stockton, California. 

Completed fi rst year of Theological Studies at Jackson College of Ministries in 

Jackson Mississippi before being called to ministry in North Pole Alaska 

Skills 

As a member of the clergy, the applicant has training and experience in all areas of 

communication and diplomacy. With the ability of not losing sight of the goal and the 

big picture. He has no trouble making decisions when they need to be made and is 

adept in his ability to steer individuals or groups in the direction set forth by the 

authority having jurisdiction. 

City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 86 of 93



To Mayor Jim Matherly, 

Hello sir, and I hope this day has found you in full recovery mode from the late night and the 
events from last night's City Council Meeting. 

The purpose of this letter is to make you aware of my intention and desire to be on the city 
council. As you have come to know about me, I am a public servant. In every aspect of my job, I 
serve our community, our police officers and their families, the dispatchers of the FPD and even 
all that I have come to know and respect at Fairbanks City Hall. 

I ran for this seat last fall and I am sorry that through the resignation of long time fairbanks 
resident, Jerry Norum, this seat is once again open. However, with this seat open, I believe that 
it would be in the best interest of the mayor to fill this seat with someone that brings to the table 
the qualities that I possess. I do not pretend to have a plethora of experience in politics, 
however two things come to mind. I am, by choice and creation a diplomat. I believe in bringing 
all parties to the table and finding any win/win if there be any, number two, I am a quick study, I 
know how to listen, step back from any situation and see the larger picture. These are the two 
major things that I can bring to the table. I would like to believe that my character will speak for 
itself. 

My abbreviated social work history: I have been a minister in this area since returning from bible 
school (seminary) in 1994. I have worked in two churches in the past 23 years. One, I helped 
start from nothing. I know the complexities of working with people from all walks of life and 
experiences. With work in youth ministry for many years and pastoring in our city since 2008 as 
senior pastor of our church, I have worked with many other programs and have a burden to see 
our city as it once was. Safe for our children and theirs after them. 

Mr Mayor, please consider me for this position, I will not let you, the city of fairbanks or our 
residents down. 

Jn1/W) 
f !Jhan~ will 

City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 87 of 93



FAIRBANKS DIVERSITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

JUNE 13, 2017 - 5:30 PM 
FAIRBANKS CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

800 CUSHMAN STREET, FAIRBANKS, ALASKA 

The Fairbanks Diversity Council (FDC) convened at 5:30 p.m. on the above date to conduct a 
Regular Meeting at the City Council Chambers, 800 Cushman Street, Fairbanks, Alaska, with 
Mayor Jim Matherly presiding and with the following members in attendance: 

Members Present: 

Members Absent: 

Also Present: 

Shirley Lee, Seat B 
Montean Jackson, Seat C 
Travis Cole, Seat E 
Herbert Butler, Seat G 
Marna Sanford, Seat I 
Douglas Toelle, Seat J 

Ana Maria Richards, Seat A (unexcused) 

Juanita Webb, Seat D (excused) 

Vacant, Seat F 

D. Danyielle Snider, City Clerk 
Eric Jewkes, Police Chief 

Rita Davis, Seat L 
Jeff Walters, Seat M 
Kelvin Lee, Seat O (telephonic) 

Angela Foster-Snow, HR Director 
June Rogers, City Council Member 

Rosalind Kan, Seat H ( excused) 

Jo Ann Borges, Seat K (unexcused) 

Amber Taylor, Seat N (excused) 

Christina Rowlett, HR Admin 
Mike Meeks, Chief of Staff 

CALL TO ORDER & READING OF THE FDC MISSION STATEMENT 

Chair Matherly called the meeting to order and read aloud the FDC Mission Statement. He 
stated that Ms. Trina Bailey is no longer a member of the FDC, and there is a vacancy. 

Vice Chair Walters recognized members who were nearing term expiration. Ms. Jackson 
indicated that she would be willing to apply for reappointment; Ms. Lee stated that she will not 
be able to continue on the FDC. Chair Matherly stated that Ms. Richards has indicated that she 
would not be continuing on the FDC. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Mr. Toelle, seconded by Mr. Cole, moved to APPROVE the Agenda. 

The Agenda was APPROVED without objection. 

CITIZEN'S COMMENTS (Limited to 3 minutes) 

Frank Turney 329 6th Avenue -Mr. Turney spoke to racial discrimination injury selection, and 
he referenced the draft letter in the agenda packet. He indicated that he would like the letter to 
be sent to the Bar Association. He stated that he has done some homework on the issue and that 
the Supreme Court agrees that there is a problem. Mr. Turney spoke to jury consulting and 
stated that the process cherry picks jurors. He suggested that the letter also be sent to the 
Governor. 

City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 88 of 93



Police Chief Eric Jewkes - Chief Jewkes stated that he has observed a number of jury trials and 
that there is no external source by which jurors are selected. 

Hearing no more requests for testimony, Chair Matherly declared Citizen's Comments closed. 

APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MINUTES 

a) Regular Meeting Minutes of May 9, 2017 

Mr. Toelle, seconded by Ms. Lee, moved to APPROVE the May 9, 2017 meeting minutes. 

The Minutes were APPROVED without objection. 

FAIRBANKS POLICE DEPARTMENT & HUMAN RESOURCES REPORTS 

HR Director Angela Foster-Snow spoke to the ordinance being introduced to the City Council 
that would give a $20,000 bonus to a lateral police officer hired by the Fairbanks Police 
Department (FPD). She stated that bonuses would be paid with salary savings and would 
actually be a cost savings to the City since it costs about $40,000 to train a brand new recruit. 
She stated that a lateral hire is someone who has already been academy-certified. She stated that 
FPD is currently very understaffed. Ms. Foster-Snow stated that the City is hoping to contract 
with a former Alaska State Trooper (AST) to perform background checks for employment at the 
City. She shared that there are four dispatchers in the background process currently; she 
indicated that it can be a long process. She stated that there is an Engineer I position open at the 
City that will close next Friday. She stated that she is working to update City job descriptions. 
She stated that she sometimes get phone calls inquiring about events pertaining to the FDC. 

Ms. Rogers added that she is co-sponsoring the FPD bonus ordinance and that it may save even 
more money than anticipated. 

Chief Jewkes stated that two officers who graduated from the Academy on Friday started at FPD 
on June 12. He stated those officers will begin field training the following week. He stated that 
five applicants are currently undergoing background investigation. He stated that there has been 
about a half a dozen inquiries since the FPD bonus ordinance was introduced. Chief Jewkes, in 
response to FDC member questions, confirmed that the questions asked of applicants during the 
interview process remain the same. He spoke to some of the details in the FPD bonus ordinance 
and to the staffing challenges at FPD. Chief Jewkes indicated that traffic enforcement can lead 
to crime prevention. 

Ms. Rogers stated that she feels it is important for FDC members to speak to the City Council in 
support of the FPD bonus ordinance. She stated that she would like to do something special for 
Officer Elzey. Chair Matherly stated that he would bring pizza to the next FDC meeting. 

Mr. Walters, seconded by Mr. Butler, moved that the FDC SUPPORT City Ordinance No. 
6050 regarding FPD hiring bonuses. 

There was a unanimous voice vote in the affirmative to SUPPORT 
City Ordinance No. 6050. 

Fairbanks Diversity Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT June 13, 2017 
Page2 of6 

City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 89 of 93



DIVERSITY TOPIC OF THE MONTH 

a) Invocations at Public Meetings 

Ms. Sanford stated that she reached out to the sponsor of the failed FNSB ordinance which 
addressed invocations at public meetings. She stated that the topic is no longer forthcoming. 

Chair Matherly stated that the City Clerk gives an invocation at City Council meetings, and it is 
more of a meditation than a religious prayer. 

Mr. Butler stated that he supports the separation between church and state; he stated that he is 
against invocations at public meetings. Mr. Walters expressed some agreement with Mr. Butler 
and commented that he enjoys the reading of the FDC Mission Statement at the start of meetings. 

Ms. Lee pointed out that since invocations are no longer an issue at the FNSB or at the City, the 
FDC may not need to spend any more time on it. Ms. Sanford stated that members should keep 
the issue on their minds in case it reemerges in the future. She stated that if it comes up again, 
she would like the FDC to address it. Ms. Jackson stated that she would like to see the Pledge 
of Allegiance added to FDC meetings. 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

a) Jury Selection Process, Letter to the Court System 

Ms. Sanford, seconded by Ms. Jackson, moved to APPROVE the Letter to the Court System. 

Mr. Walters spoke to the letter he drafted and to the research he did in preparing the document. 
Members discussed how to go about addressing jury discrimination in the court system since it is 
out of the City of Fairbanks and Borough jurisdiction. Ms. Lee commented that the letter should 
go to someone who can legally affect change. She stated that the recommendation may be to 
create a data collection tool to ensure a jury of peers is met and that information be made public. 

Ms. Sanford stated that it is good idea to get the word out about FDC to the courts and 
legislature, but that she believes the issue of jury discrimination is outside the purview of the 
body. Mr. Butler stated that it is a nationwide issue that has gone on for centuries. He added 
that the FDC should acknowledge that the issue is concerning but is beyond the FDC. Members 
continued discussing how to proceed. Ms. Lee suggested adding language to request data 
collection and sending the letter to the court and the legislature. 

Clerk Snider cautioned that it may not be appropriate for the FDC to send a recommendation 
directly to the State legislature since the FDC serves under the City Council. She suggested that 
a resolution to present to the City Council may be more appropriate. 

Ms. Sanford suggested that a resolution could be sent to the Criminal Justice Commission; she 
stated that they take on new issues. Mr. Toelle agreed with Ms. Sanford's suggestion. Chair 
Matherly and Mr. Walters stated they would work with other members to prepare something. 

Ms. Sanford, with the concurrence of the second, WITHDREW the motion to approve the letter. 

Fairbanks Diversity Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT June 13, 2017 
Page3 of6 

City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 90 of 93



b) Term Limit, Role, and Duties of Vice Chair 

Mr. Walters proposed that the Vice Chair term be changed to a one-year term. Ms. Foster
Snow suggested that there be an Emeritus, a Vice Chair, and a Vice Chair Elect. 

Mr. Toelle, seconded by Ms. Sanford, moved to RECOMMEND that the Vice Chair term be 
changed from three years to one year, and that an Emeritus and a Vice Chair Elect be added. 

There was a unanimous voice vote in the affirmative to 
RECOMMEND that the Vice Chair term be changed from three 
years to one year, and that an Emeritus and a Vice Chair Elect be 
added. 

Members agreed that the terms of the positions be from July to July. Chair Matherly indicated 
that he would propose an ordinance to the City Council to make the changes. 

Ms. Sanford pointed out that FGC 2-234 subsection (12) states that the FDC will not be 
involved in matters outside the jurisdiction of the City or Borough. Members discussed FGC 2-
234 subsections (10) and (12) and questioned whether the language would prohibit the FDC from 
making a recommendation regarding jury discrimination. They requested that the City Attorney 
look into the issue. 

Ms. Sanford, seconded by Ms. Jackson, moved to POSTPONE the recommendations regarding 
the Vice Chair position until a response is received from the City Attorney in regard to FGC 2-
234 subsections (10) and (12). 

There was no objection to POSTPONING the recommendation. 

Ms. Sanford requested that the City Attorney's response be discussed at the next FDC Policy 
and Procedure Committee meeting on July 6. 

Chair Matherly stated that he will discuss the Code sections with the City Attorney, and he will 
email Ms. Sanford. He stated that Mr. Walters would work on the jury discrimination issue. 

FDC COMMITTEE REPORTS 

a) Butler Assignment to FDC Committee 

Mr. Butler indicated that he would like to serve on the Policy and Procedure Committee. 

b) FDC Policy & Procedure Committee Minutes-04/27/17 & 06/01/17 

This agenda item was informational only and was not discussed. 

Fairbanks Diversity Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT June 13, 2017 
Page4 of6 

City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 91 of 93



FDC MEMBERS COMMENTS 

Mr. Lee stated that he enjoyed the meeting and that he looks forward to the next one. Chair 
Matherly thanked Mr. Lee for all he does in the community through the No Limits organization. 

Ms. Jackson stated that she has been busy with graduations because her granddaughter 
graduated high school, and her daughter graduated UAF. She stated that she has been blessed. 

Mr. Butler stated that there is mention of a Diversity Action Plan (OAP) in the FDC ordinance; 
he requested a copy of the DAP. He suggested that the FDC invite the Fairbanks Economic 
Development Corporation (FEDC) to visit and bring a report. He stated that he would be unable 
to attend the next meeting. 

Mr. Cole asked whether members were still planning to serve ice cream at City Hall during the 
Golden Days events. Chair Matherly indicated that is still the plan. Mr. Cole stated that 
member participation in the event should be discussed at the next meeting. 

Ms. Foster-Snow stated that she and other City employees visited the Food Bank earlier in the 
day. She commented that she was a recipient of a food box when she was a young, single 
mother; she reminded everyone that household income is another part of diversity. 

Mr. Toelle spoke briefly to his involvement with the Food Bank. He shared that the 
Accessibility Committee will meet on Thursday, June 15. 

Ms. Davis invited everyone to attend the Juneteenth events over the weekend. She stated there 
will be a gathering at the JP Jones Community Development Center on Saturday, June 17 at 11 
a.m. before the parade. 

Ms. Sanford stated expressed excitement that the Indigenous People's Day bill was transmitted 
to Governor Walker's desk and will be signed into law. 

Ms. Rogers thanked Ms. Foster-Snow for her comment regarding the broadness of diversity. 
She advocated for the reappointment of Ms. Jackson to the FDC. 

Ms. Lee thanked everyone for their contributions to the group. She commented on how much 
work there is to do and stated that she will stay involved even though this is her last meeting as a 
member. 

Mr. Walters thanked members whose terms are expiring for their service and for being a part of 
the group since the creation of the FDC. He asked whether the FDC would have a presence at 
the upcoming Juneteenth and Intertribal Powwow events. He stated that he would be out of town 
until July 1. He stated that the Golden Days and WEIO events are also coming up. Mr. Walters 
stated that June is Gay Pride Month and that he would like to invite Hayden Nevill with the 
Gender Pioneers group as a guest speaker for the July or August meeting. He stated that he 
would like to invite Senator Coghill' s office to provide an update to the FDC on senate bills 
pertaining to criminal justice reform in July or August. Ms. Sanford agreed to reach out to 
Jordan Schilling with Senator Coghill' s office. 

Fairbanks Diversity Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT June 13, 2017 
Page 5 of6 

City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 92 of 93



Ms. Lee stated that it would be a nice if the FDC could march in the Golden Days Parade on July 
22. Chair Matherly stated that he would discuss upcoming events with Ms. Foster-Snow. He 
stated that he will look into the details about the parade and try to send an email to members. He 
announced that there is a Southside Community Farmer's Market every Tuesday from 4-7 p.m. 
at 24th Avenue and Rickert Street from June through September. He spoke briefly to the 
diversity in Fairbanks and stated that it is an honor to serve the City and the FDC. 

MEETING DATES 

The next Regular Meeting of the FDC is scheduled for July 11, 2017. 

ADJOURNMENT 

called for ADJOURNMENT at 7:25 p.m., and no members objected. 

Transcribed by: DS 

Fairbanks Diversity Council 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

NOT A VERBATIM TRANSCRIPT June 13, 2017 
Page 6 of6 

City Council Agenda Packet - July 24, 2017 93 of 93


	AGENDA - July 24, 2017
	SPECIAL ORDERS
	Marijuana License Renewals

	UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	Retail Marijuana Store Application - Nature's Releaf
	Ordinance No. 6054
	Ordinance No. 6054, as Amended (Proposed Substitute)
	Ordinance No. 6055

	NEW BUSINESS
	Resolution No. 4801
	Ordinance No. 6056

	COMMUNICATIONS TO COUNCIL
	Memo to Approve the Appointment to City Council Seat D
	Fairbanks Diversity Council Meeting Minutes - 06/13/17




